
UNITED NATIONS

General_Assembly
FORTY-SEVENTH SESSION

Official Records

SIXTH COMMITTEE
19th meeting

held on
Friday, 23 October 1992

at 10 a.m.
New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 19th MEETING

Chairman: Mr. ZARIF

CONTENTS

(Islamic Republic of Iran)

AGENDA ITEM 125: OBSERVER STATUS OF NATIONAL LIBERATION MOVEMENTS RECOGNIZED
BY THE ORGANIZATION OF AFRICAN UNITY AND/OR BY THE LEAGUE OF ARAB STATES

AGENDA ITEM 136: PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT IN TIMES OF ARMED CONFLICT

AGENDA ITEM 127: CONSIDERATION OF EFFECTIVE MEASURES TO ENHANCE THE
PROTECTION, SECURITY AND SAFETY OF DIPLOMATIC AND CONSULAR MISSIONS AND
REPRESENTATIVES

ThIS record I!'I subject to correction
Corrcctlon!ol should be sent under the Mgnature of a member of the delegation concerned

U'llhln olle Wf,(,J; ofthe date a/publication to the ChIef of the Official Records Editing Section. Room DC::!·750.
:! united Nations Plaza. and Incorporated In a copy of the record

Corrections Will be Issued after the end of the sessIOn. m a separate corngendum for each Commmee

92-57204 6179S (E)

Distr. GENERAL
AlC.6/47/SR.19
9 November 1992
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: SPANISH

I .•.Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



, ;"

A/C.6/471SR.19
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.20 a.m.

1. The CHAIRMAN welcomed Sir Robert Jennings, President of the InternationalCourt of Justice, Mr. Ago and Mr. Schwebel, Judges, and Mr. Valencia-Ospina,Registrar of the Court.

2. Sir Robert JENNINGS (President of the International Court of Justice)thanked the Chairman for his words of welcome and noted the symbolicsignificance of his annual attendance of the meetings of the Sixth Committee.The work of both the International Court of Justice and the Sixth Committeeconcerned international law, and he looked forward to further closecooperation in that connection.

AGENDA ITEM 125: OBSERVER STATUS OF NATIONAL LIBERATION MOVEMENTS RECOGNIZEDBY THE ORGANIZATION OF AFRICAN UNITY AND/OR BY THE LEAGUE OF ARAB STATES(AlC.6/47/L.5)

3. Ms. VALDES (Cuba) introduced draft resolution A/C.6/47/L.5 on behalf ofthe original sponsors as well as of Egypt, the Libyan Arab Jamahiriya andSenegal. Like the many similar resolutions adopted by the Committee everytwo years in the paot, it emphasized the need to provide national liberationmovements recognized by the Organization of African Unity or the League ofArab States with the facilities, privileges and immunities due to them intheir capacity as observers. Reiterating her support for the draftresolution, she trusted that all peace-loving States would endorse it.

4. Ms. BOUM (Cameroon) said that her country wished to become a sponsor ofthe draft resolution.

5. Mr. WOOD (United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland), speakingon behalf of the twelve States members of the European Community, said thatthe Twelve would not vote in favour of the draft resolution. All would eithervote against it or abstain, for purely legal reasons.

6. None of the Twelve had signed, ratified or acceded to the ViennaConvention on the Representation of States in Their Relations withInternational Organizations of a Universal Character. The Convention had notsecured general agreement at the Conference in 1975 and, 17 years after itsadoption, only 25 States had ratified or acceded to it. The Convention hadthus not yet entered into force.

7. In addition, the principal States which hosted internationalorganizations of a universal character had maintained that they could notagree with a number of the Convention's provisions. In the circumstances, theEuropean Community and its member States did not think it appropriate that aGeneral Assembly resolution should seek to enhance the status of theConvention. Finally, the yearly decline in the number of speakers on the itemunder consideration indicated a clear lack of interest in the matter. In theopinion of his delegation, the item s~ould not remain on the agenda of theGeneral Assembly.

I •••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



al

A/C.6/47/SR.19
English
Page 3

8. Mr. GONDRA (Argentina) said that his country supported the participation
of national liberation movements as observers in organizations and at
international conferences. Nevertheless, it was obvious that interest in the
item had diminished and that the number of speakers on the issue had gradually
decreased, to the extent that there had been not a single speaker during the
current session. His delegation would therefore abstain from voting on the
draft resolution.

9. Ms. WILLSON (United States of America) said that the decision by many
States not to endorse the Convention when it was adopted demonstrated the
pointlessness of cOlitinuing to dwell on the draft resolution. The only result
was to undermine the authority of resolutions and conventions which had
achieved broad acceptance.

10. Her delegation did not agree with paragraph 1 of the draft resolution
because it did not accept the contents of the Convention mentioned therein,
which neither reflected established law nor even was valid as lege ferenda.
There was no legal basis for paragraph 2, and the request contained in
paragraph 3 entailed expenditure and a waste of time and energy, encouraging
continued emphasis on a draft resolution in which no one showed any interest.
Her delegation would therefore vote against the draft resolution.

11. Ms. GOLAN (Israel) said that her delegation opposed the draft resolution,
as it had the previous year, for both factual and legal reasons.

12. Under article 89 of the Vienna Convention on the Representation of States
in Their Relations with International Organizations of a Universal Character,
the Convention would enter into force following the deposit of the
thirty-fifth instrument of ratification or accession. However, only 25 such
instruments had so far been received and there had been no additional
signatures since the introduction of the last draft resolution. To call for
States to apply a Convention which had not yet entered into force therefore
appeared to her delegation to be somewhat premature and of questionable
practical value.

13. In the view of her country, the Sixth Committee should not recommend that
the General Assembly adopt a resolution whereby States that were not parties
to a convention, which in its turn was not in force, were requested to apply
its provisions, nor ask the Secretary-General to follow up on the
implementation of what was an unimplementable resolution. It was particularly
concerned by the seventh preambular paragraph of the draft resolution, which
was somewhat ironic and lacked any foundation in law, fact or theory. Her
delegation would therefore vote against the draft resolution.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



I '

A/C.6/47/SR.19
English
Page 4

14. A recorded vote was taken on draft resolution A/C.6./47/L~.

In favour: Algeria. Antigua and Barbuda. Armenia. Bahrain, Barbados,
Benin. Botswana. Brazil. Brunei Darussalam, Cameroon. Chile,
China. Colombia. Cote d'Ivoire. Cuba, Cyprus. Djibouti.
Ecuador. Egypt. Ethiopia, Gabon, Guyana. India, Indonesia,
Iran (Islamic Republic of). Iraq, Jordan, Kuwait. Lebanon,
Malawi. Malaysia. Maldives. Mali. Mexico. Morocco,
Mozambique. Myanmar. Namibia. Niqer. Nigeria. Oman,
Pakistan. Peru. Rwanda. Saudi Arabia. Senegal. Singapore,
Sri Lanka. Suriname. Swaziland. Syrian Arab Republic,
Thailand. Trinidad and Tobago. Tunisia. United Arab
Emirates. United Republic of Tanzania. Uruguay. Vanuatu,
Venezuela. Viet Nam. Zimbabwe.

Against: Belgium. France. Germany. Israel, Italy. Luxembourg,
Netherlands. United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland. United States of America.

Abstaining: Argentina. Australia. Austria. Belarus. BUlgaria. Canada,
Costa Rica. Czechoslovakia. Denmark. Finland. Greece,
Hungary. Japan. Liechtenstein. Malta. Marshall Islands,
New Zealand. Norway, Poland. Portugal. Republic of Korea,
Romania. Russian Federation. Saint Kitts and Nevis. $pain,
Sweden. Turkey. Ukraine.

15. Draft resolution A/C.6/47/L.5 was adopted by 61 votes to 9. with 2~

abstantions.

16. Mr. CHOI (Republic of Korea) said that his country had abstained in the
vote for purely juridical reasons. Only 25 Member States had ratified the
Vienna Convention on the Representation of States in Their Relations with
International Organizations of a Universal Character adopted in 1975.
Moreover. that instrument raised some legal questions that prevented its
ratification by a number of States. Nevertheless, his abstention did not
constitute a precedent of any kind concerning Korea's position with regard to
national liberation movements.

17. Mr. YOUSIF (Sudan). Mr. OOLD MOHAMED LEMINE (Mauritania), Mr. MANGUSHO
(Uganda). Mr. ALKHAZMI (Libyan Arab Jamahiriya). Mr. AL-DALAY (Yemen) and
Mr. ZIAUDDIN (Bangladesh) said that. had they been present during the vote on
draft resolution A/C.6/47/L.5. they would have voted in favour.

18. Mr. BIGGAR (Ireland) noted that had it been present his delegation would
have abstained.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



Oi,

1ile,

ia,
)n,

!,

'n

I,

I,

n,

he

to

Q

on

lId

.";._ .... -. -'-'~-".

AlC.6/471SR.19
English
Page 5

AGENDA ITEM 136: PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONME~~ IN TIMES OF ARMED CONFLICT
(A/C.6/47/L.2/Rev.1)

19. The CHAIRMAN announced that Armenia, Austria, Belgium, Bulgaria, Chile
and the Philippines had joined the sponsors of draft resolution
A/C.6/47/L.2/Rev.l.

20. Mr. ORDZHONIKIDZE (Russian Federation) said that, as the Secretariat had
been informed, his delegation wished to join the sponsors of the draft
resolution.

21. Mr. KHEIR (Jordan) introduced the draft resolution (A/C.6/47/L.2/Rev.1)
and said that it represented a serious effort to address to the greatest
extent possible the concerns expressed by various delegations and groups. Its
text was delicate and carefully balanced and haf been reached after continuous
and extensive debate and a great deal of compromise. For that reason, he
hoped that it would be adopted by consensus.

22. Mr. STRAUSS (Canada) said that his delegation considered the subject of
the protection of the environment in times of armed conflict very important
and therefore felt that it should be included in the agenda of the General
Assembly at its next session as a separ~te item.

23. Mr. GONDRA (Argentina) said that in his delegation's view the word
"destruction" in the fifth preambular paragraph covered total or partial
destruction and included damage to the environment.

24. Mr. DELON (France) said that the clear distinction made in the second
preambular paragraph between the provisions of international law applicable to
the protection of the environment in times of armed conflict and, in
particular, both the rules of universal applicability laid down in The Hague
Convention of 1907 and the Geneva Convention of 1949, on the one hand, and the
applicable rules of the Protocol Additional to the Geneva Conventions of 19r9
and the Convention of 1977 tended to reinforce the notion that the
above-mentioned Protocol only bound the States parties which had adhered to
it. On that understanding, France joined the consensus expressed in draft
resolution A/C.6/47/L.2/Rev.1.

25. Mr. CHATURVEDI (India) said that the question of the protection of the
environment in times of armed conflict was very important and that his
Government would be glad to see the largest possible number of couutries
ratify the relevant instruments. Although his delegation would have preferred
that the General Assembly examine the question later in order to give the
International Committee of the Red Cross and other bodies an opportunity to
study it more carefully, it would be able to support the text of the dr- .
resolution, which represented a well-balanced compromise solution.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



WC..!S'4.",D.19
hglish
Page &

2&. Mrsa JOqflf,,1A (lIelarus) proposed that, in view of the ite.'s importance,
it s!Ioa14 be iIIcludecl .i:a the iOIgeada of the General AsseJ8bly's next session as
a ~~ it_. $be velc:c.ec1 the idea that the International COiMittee of
tJae bel~ shouJ\c1 ~t to the General AsseJ8b1y a report on its activities
which would iJ:Id.ac1e iJlterpretations o,! iDtC!rnational law on the question
~. &:5 ol:JMtr cJelegatiou had pointed out, the absence of such
.i:at.rpre~tioas,;right give rise to aisUDderstandings.

~7. lIE. PIA (Kalaysia) said that Ui view of the sub1ect' s importance he
agreed. t'laat .i:a ~ &ture tJJe it.. should be considered separately.

~.. till CIAf'":MN! said tbat if tbere were no objectiont: he would take it that
the ee-.it~ vish2d to approve draft resolution WC.6J'47J'L.2'Rev.1 wi. hout a
~-

~ UDl U7: CCM$~:ICBIOF EfEEttIVE MEASURES TO ENHAlICE THE
noUC11... SJtCUUft AD :suzrr OF DIP£OMAUC iIlID COl'SULU KtSSIONS J.ND
Jl:EP!lH'.U:nvz:s (W·«7I325 aDd Add.1 aDd 2; WC.6J'47.1L.6)

30. Ik" fDU!!I.f.JI'.A (FiUiUId) i.J'i.troduced draft resolutiou MC.61'47J'L.6 and
:tlt..... c:ed t:Jaat: .J~ had jo~ the list of sp..uors.

31" As UIe n:pott o~ t:he 5ecret:aq-GeDeral (W47J'325 and Md.l and 2) made
clear.. riol.atioas of die safeqr aDd security of diploaatic and consUlar
ai$$i.olrIS a-' ~ti.ves eoatinued t@ ";.e a p:c~leM for the international
c:c: aiC;y ilIilDIil S1ICh ri~!~tioas were prej"CiY<iclal to intelmationa! relations.
'!liae $OUt/! tA~ aaiIe iD. t:.he CoMUt:t:ee s~ t:ha.t MeUer States were determined
b) <:c-OIS! 8& ilI..'Pd pmaish sv.c:h practices.

32. n. ClrUt: rewhatiQA :before ~ Ce-it~ vas based on the resolutions on
~ $1iIibjeet:~ hr die Seaerd Assellhlyover the years. Events had led to
~ .ia t:be~ ckUu.g of the resol.ution aDd on the present occasion it
-a:s~ drat it shauld be cpproved in its traditional fora so that it
~~~ CGIli.t:is=;t""J amce:r:a of~r States rl!Cjarclinq the violations
!Iei.aI.J CGlDbtted"

33. h r ...... of t;Ile iIlIpG~ of the question for all Govenlllleats, the
spoason> of ~ d--..ft: n!$Ol..tiO:l bopec1 that: the COlIIIIIi.ttee would approve it
vi.~a~~

3-1_ * ..~ (£t:hi.opu) said t.bat:, as the host to BOre than 80 diplomatic and
~ aissioes.. oes well as a State adhering to t:he aain legal instrWllents
foe U. ps:ct:eetioa amc1 :sear:-it:.tr of suc:b sUsd.on:li and their represelltatives~

~iopi~ hn7 ~n:e4~ objeco'tleS of t.,."le draft resolutiona His country
.. itl.~~ tlaat: a.JIIY ".-iolation Ir,Jf the security of lIIissions Or

~bel~~ ~19 ~ vas it. violatie,;;;t ~i ;;'!:'ft~~~ational law and should not
_ teIeralted_

/ ...

35.
of Isr
Secre
by the
relRe
gover
was
taken
the di
there
streng
with t
with t
conuni
and th

36. T
that t
vote.

37. D

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



The meeting rose at 11.10 a.m.

37. Draft resolution A/C.6/47/L.6 was approved.,

36. The CHAIRMAN said that, if there were no objections, he would take it
that the Committee wished to approve draft resolution A/C.6/47/L.6 without a
vote.

A/C.6/47/SR.19
English
Page 7

(Mr. Nega, Ethiopia)
,

35. After referring briefly to the events that had caken place in the Embassy
of Israel in Addis Ab~ba on 17 September 1991. which were mentioned in the
Secretary-General report (A/47/325 and Add.1 and 2) and in the statement made
by the representative of Israel in the Committee. he said it must be
relnembered that the incident had taken place as 17 years of dictatorial
government and 7 years of civil war were coming to an end in his country. It
was unfortunate that such an event had taken place, in spite of the measures
taken by the transitional government to ensure the protection and security of
the diplomatic and consular missions and their representatives. Although
there had been no casualtie~ or damage, his Government was anxious to
strengthen its security measures and continued to act in close consultation
with the authorities of the Israeli Embassy, which had expr~ssed satisfaction
with the way the situation had been handled. He renewed his country's
commib~ent to the protection and security of diplomatic and consular missions
and their ~epresentatives.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library




